DATE:

LOCATION:

TIME:

1:00—2:00

2:00-2:10

2:10-2:20

2:20-2:30

2:30-2:40

2:40-3:20

3:20-3:40

3:40 - 3:50

3:50-4:05

4:05

Cape Light Compact
Executive Committee &
Governing Board Meeting

Wednesday, February 10, 2016

Innovation Room, Open Cape Building
3195 Main Street, Barnstable County Complex

2:00 - 4:30 p.m.

OPTIONAL: Overview of Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, Compact Counsel

AGENDA

Public Comment

Approval of Minutes

Treasurer's Report, Potential Vote to Ratify Treasurers’ Approval of Contracts
Chairman’s Report

Discussion and Presentation on Energy Efficiency Plan Commercial & Industrial
Programs — Municipal and Non Profits, Potential Vote on Any Recommended
Action, Margaret Song

Discussion on Compact Policy Positions Relative to Grid Modernization Plans
filed by Massachusetts Distribution Companies (DPU 15-120, 15-121 and 15-
122), Potential Vote on Any Recommended Action]

Review Draft Board Member Roles and Responsibilities, Potential Vote

Board Member Update (Reserved for Updates on Member Activities the Chair
Did Not Reasonably Anticipate Would be Discussed — No Voting)

Administrator’s Report
1. Power Supply Marketing Plan Update



Draft minutes subject to addition, correction and Board Approval

Cape Light Compact

Governing Board

Open Session Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, January 27, 2016

The Cape Light Compact Executive Committee and Governing Board met on Wednesday,
January 27, 2016 in the Innovation Room, Open Cape Building, Barnstable County Complex,
3195 Main Street, Barnstable MA 02630 at 2:00 p.m.

PRESENT WERE:

VXN AW —

Dr. Joyce Flynn, Chairwoman, Yarmouth-by phone
Rabert Schofield, Vice-Chair, Bourne

Peter Cocolis, Treasurer, Chatham

Barry Worth, Secretary, Harwich

David Anthony, Barnstable

Frederick Fenlon, Eastham

Paul Pimentel, Edgartown

Ronald Zweig, Falmouth

Richard Toole, Oak Bluffs

. Thomas Donegan, Provincetown
. Joshua Peters, Sandwich

. Joseph Buteau, Truro

. Richard Elkin, Wellfleet

14.

Sue Hruby, W. Tisbury

Valerie Bell, Harwich Member Elect
LEGAL COUNSEL
Audrey Eidelman, Esq., BCK Law, PC
Jeffrey Bernstein, Esq., BCK Law, PC — by phone from 2:58 pm. — 4:00 p.m.

STAFF PRESENT:

Maggie Downey, Administrator

Meredith Miller, EM&V Manager

Margaret Song, Commercial & Industrial Program Manager
Austin Brandt, Power Supply Planner

Lindsay Henderson, Analyst

Karen Loura, Administrative Assistant

ABSENT WERE:

15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

22

Michael Hebert, Aquinnah

Sheila Lyons, Barnstable County
Deane Keuch, Brewster

Tim Carroll, Chilmark

Brad Crowell, Dennis

John Ally, Dukes County Member elect
Thomas Mayo, Mashpee

. Raymond Castillo, Orleans
23.

Tisbury — vacant

Members physically present: 13
Members participating by phone: 1

V. Chr. Schofield called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. stating the meeting notice/agenda had been duly
posted on the Cape Light Compact website in accordance with the Open Meeting Law. The Chair
acknowledged remote participation of Dr. Joyce Flynn by phone due to illness.

2016 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE NOMINATIONS AND VOTE
M.'Downey reviewed the slate of candidates nominated to serve on the Cape Light Compact Governing Board
Executive Committee at the December 9, 2015 meeting.
CHAIRMAN;

T. MAYO NOMINATED JOVCE FLYNN TO THE POSITION OF CHAIRPERSON, SECONDED BY R. SCHOFIELD
AT THE DECEMBER 9, 2015 MEETING. With no additional nominations, R. Schofield moved to close
nominations for the position of Chairperson, seconded by P. Cocolis and voted unanimously in favor.



Draft Minutes subject to addition, correction and Board approval

VICE CHAIRMAN:

o T.MAYONOMINATED ROBERT SCHOFIELD TO THE POSITION OF V. CHAIRPERSON, SECONDED BY B.
WORTH AT THE DECEMBER 9, 2015 MELTING. With no additional nominations, R, Zweig moved to close
nominations for the position of Vice Chairperson, seconded by P. Pimentel and voted unanimously in
favor,

TREASURER:

s T.MAYONOMINATED PETER COCOLIS TO THE POSITION OF TREASURER, SECONDED BY R. SCHDFIELD
ST THE DECEMBER 9, 2015 MEFTING, With no additional nominations, R, Elkin moved to close
nominations for the position of Treasurer, seconded by J. Buteau and voted unaninously in favor.

SECRETARY:

s P.COCOLIS NOMINATED RONALD ZWEIG TO THE POSITION OF SECRETARY, SECONDED BY R, SCHOFIELD
AT THE DECEMBER 9, 2013 MEETING. With no additional nominations, S. Hruby moved to close
nominations for the position of Secretary, seconded by J. Buteau and voted unanimously in favor.

MEMBER-AT-LARGE:

o S HRUBY NOMINATED R. TOOLE TO THE POSITION OF MEMBER-AT-LARGE AT THE DECEMBER 9,
2015, R. TOOLE DECLINED 1O ACCEPT THE NOMINATION AT THAT TIME BUT AGREED TO GIVE 11
CONSIDERATION. P. Pimentel nominated R. Toole to the position of Member-at-Large, seconded by P.
Cocolis. R. Toole indicated he is willing to accept the nomination. With no additional nominations, R,
Elkin moved to close nominations for the position of Member-at Large and vote in favor of the foregoing
slate of nominees to the 2016 Executive Committee, seconded by Sue Hruby and voted by roll call vote

as follows:
1. D. Anthony, Barnstable Yes 8. R Toole, Oak Bluffs Yes
2. R Schofield, Bourne Yes 9. T Donegan, Provincetown Yes
3. P. Cocolis, Chatham Yes 10. J. Peters, Sandwich Yes
4. F. Fenlon, Eastham Yes 11, J. Buteau, Truro Yes
3. P. Pimentel, Edgartown Yes 12. R. Elkin, Wellfleet Yes
6. R. Zweig, Falmouth Yes 13. 8. Hruby, W. Tisbury Yes
7. B. Worth, Harwich Yes 14. J. Flynn, Yarmouth Yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (14-0-0).

PusLIC COMMENT
There were no members of the public present. There were no public comments.

CONSIDERATION OF MEETING MINUTES

B. Worth, Secretary presented the December 9, 2015 Meeting Minutes for approval. S. Hruby offered a
correction to the Call letters of the Radio Station she mentioned on Page 2 to Radio WCALI, D. Anthony
requested *“sec” be replaced with “seconded” on page 4, under nominations for Secretary. D. Anthony then
moved the Board vote to accept the December 9k 2015 Meeting Minutes as corrected, seconded by P. Pimentel
and voted unanimously by rofl call vote as follows:

1. D. Anthony, Barnstable Yes 8. R Toole, Oak Bluffs Yes
2. R. Schofield, Bourne Yes 9. T. Donegan, Provincetown Yes
3. P. Cocolis, Chatham Yes 10. J. Peters, Sandwich Yes
4. F. Fenlon, Eastham Yes 11. J. Buteau, Truro Yes
5. P. Pimentel, Edgartown Yes 12. R, Eikin, Wellfleet Yes
6. R. Zweig, Falmouth Yes 13. S. Hruby, W. Tisbury Yes

CAPE LIGHT COMPACT GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINTUES
JANUARY 27, 2016 OPEN SESSION MEETING MINUTES

Fudt



Draft Minutes subject to addition, correction and Board approval

7. B. Worth, Harwich Yes 14. J. Flynn, Yarmouth Yes
Motion carried in the affirmative (14-0-0).

TREASURER’S REPORT

ENERGY EFFICIENCY BUDGET & OPERATING FUND UPDATE

P. Cocolis provided review of the January-November, 2015 Energy Efficiency Budget Report. He said that
2015 invoices are still being processed, and a 2015 final report will be presented in 2016. Funds remairing roll
into next year’s budget, and are fully reconciled each year by the DPU. He projects spending will beclose to
99% at reconciliation. There was a question regarding whether the total budget could be exceeded. M. Downey
explained that this is the end of a 3-year budget and overages cannot occur in the total budget.amount. She
reviewed the Mid-term Modification process.

R. Zweig commended the staff for administering such a complex program/budget and'for having it come in so
close to balance. M. Downey also commended her staff adding the Compact has exceeded all 2015 savings
goals and also for their good work on the new 3-year plan. There will be a presentation at the March Meeting.
M. Downey reviewed acronyms and provided an overview of the coding process. P. Cocolis noted that out of a
39-million dollar program budget, the administrative expense is around 6% for 2016. The Cape Light
Compact’s Home Energy Services closure rate is highest in state.

P. Cocolis then reviewed the FY 16 Operating Budget Expenditures Report as of 1/27/16. A supplemental
budget adjustment will be needed to cover overages in staff and retirement due to employee overlapping for
training and continuity purposes.

P. Cocolis said there will be a marketing plan review later which may also trigger a supplemental budget
adjustment

VOTE TO RATIFY TREASURER’S APPROVAL OF. CONTRACTS

P. Cocolis reviewed the Contract Tracking Process and the procurement process. R. Elkin moved the Board
vote to ratify the actions of the Compact Treasurer relative to Compact contracts from November 13, 2015
through January 27, 2016, seconded R. Zweig and voted by roll call as follows:

1. D. Anthony, Barnstable Yes 8. R Toole, Oak Bluffs Yes
2. R. Schofield, Bourne Yes 9. T. Donegan, Provincetown Yes
3. P. Cocolis, Chatham Yes 10. J. Peters, Sandwich Yes
4. F. Fenlon, Eastham Yes 11. J. Buteau, Truro Yes
3. P. Pimentel, Edgartown Yes 12, R. Elkin, Wellfleet Yes
6. R. Zweig, Falmouth Yes 13. S. Hruby, W. Tisbury Yes
7. B. Worth,; Harwich Yes 14. J. Flynn, Yarmouth Yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (14-0-0).

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
The Board then took up Administrator’s Report out of order.

M. Downey recognized Barry Worth who has resigned from the Governing Board effective January 31, 2016
and presented a plaque in appreciation of his commitment and dedication to energy policies and programs
& 18 Years of Service on the Cape Light Compact Goveming Board.

CAPE LIGHT COMPACT GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINTUES

JANUARY 27, 2016 QPEN SESSION MEETING MINUTES o



Draft Minutes subject to addition, correction and Board approval

B. Schofield recognized Valerie Bell, Harwich Alternate, in attendance, who has been appointed to replace
Barry Worth.

UPDATE ON 2016-2018 ENERGY EFFICIENCY PLAN

M. Downey reported the Department of Public Utilities (DPU) is required to issue a determination of approval
or amendment to the proposed 3-year Energy Efficiency Plan (2016-2018) by January 30*. To date, the
Compact has not received notice. As a result the demand response offering (demonstrations with a group of
200 customers for the first year and adding two hundred customers each year) has not been started. .The
program currently utilizes a device named The Energy Detective (TED) as Eversource is not ready.to deploy
smart meters. Staff is also participating in a Demand Response Working Group with other Program
Administrators.

StafT is also putting together a white paper on Grid Modemization, summarizing 1000’s of pages of documents.
Questions will be queued up and reviewed with the Board for discussion to determine the Board’s position on
significant community matters that the Board will need to consider. The topic will likely be on the February
10™ and March 9" Agendas.

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT
M. Downey also reported that there will be a review of the Administrative Services Agreement between

Barnstable County and Cape Light Compact on a meeting agenda... She reported on a meeting with the
Barnstable County Commissioners Chairperson.

Atty. Bernstein joined the meeting by phone at 2:58 p.m.
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT -No report.

DISCUSSION OF ASSEMBLY OF DELEGATES TELECOMMUNICATIONS & ENERGY COMMITTEE MEETINGS OF
DECEMBER, 2015 AND JANUARY, 2016
M. Downey reviewed the history of the Assembly of Delegates (AOD) Telecommunications & Energy
Committee and their request to meet with the Compact in December 2015 and a subsequent, January 6, 2016
Meeting Agenda. T. Donegan, who attended the meeting to represent Cape Light Compact reported that he felt
the meeting was not on energy markets or the Compact’s aggregation plan as posted
T. Donegan reported on topics discussed at the 1/6/16 AOD Telecommunications & Energy Committee meeting
which he attended with A. Brandt, P. Cocolis, R. Schofield and S. Ridley:

e Discussion suggesting that Cape Light Compact uses aggregation funds as a bribe and insinuated the

Compact offers incentives to towns and taking funds from local business and giving it to towns.

He said in said in Provincetown, their street lighting electricity bills were $48,000/yr. but are now $18,000/yr.
He said Provincetown is not asking business to pay for savings. The inference by the Assembly Committee is
as if something is wrong with the Compact incentivizing energy savings. In fact, it is the mission of the Cape
Light Compact to find opportunities and support energy savings.

e Discussion insinuating that Board members are lining their pockets financially.
The AOD Telecommunications & Energy Committee consists of James Killion, Deborah McCutcheon, Patrick
Princi, Suzanne McAuliffe, John Ohman and Teresa Martin. Some of the members have long standing
opposition to Cape Light Compact.

e A tone of malfeasance was apparent across the membership.
He was insulted that he drives here from Provincetown, keeps himself informed and spends significant time
without compensation to receive such derogatory and accusatory treatment.

CAPE LIGHT COMPACT GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINTUES
JANUARY 27, 2016 OPEN SESSION MEETING MINUTES



Draft Minutes subject to addition, correction and Board approval

o Charges that BCK Law has created a money factory for itself.
T. Donegan said he believes these aspersions and accusations require a response. He said the meeting was a
mess and the meeting minutes http://www.barnstablecounty.or -content/uploads/2014/02/Tele-Ener
16-Elecrtic-Rates-Discussed-Powicki-2.pdf do not reflect what actually transpired.

The Board discussed whether to issue a formal response.

There was discussion that if the Board allows charges of malfeasance to go unanswered that it will be perceived
the Board is acquiescing.

T. Donegan urged a response be forwarded to the Speaker of the AOD. T. Donegan said the AOD also needs to
understand that they are creating liabilities for themselves by making allegations of criminal activities.

Atty. Bernstein said the AOD has no jurisdiction over or within the Cape Light Compact. Atty. Bernstein
expressed the concem that a response would draw the Board in and dignify the AOD Committee’s entire
process. He said he would be reluctant to engage them because it would likely be fruitless.

M. Downey reported Chris Powicki’s Presentation http://www.bamstablecounty.org/wp-
content/uploads/2014/02/1-6-2016-Assembly-Committee-Powicki-1.pdf is posted on the AOD website.

T. Donegan said the experience raised a bigger issue concerning the relationship between Cape Light Compact
and Barnstable County.

S. Hruby expressed her instinct is to do nothing.

P. Pimentel said no good deed goes unpunished and that the Board has to realize there are some people that will
find fault no matter what. Typically responding to them empowers them. He urged the members to swallow
the insult.

R. Zweig asked if the Compact is obligated to report violations of the Open Meeting Law to the Attorney
General’s Office.

R. Elkin said he would like to start down the path of replacing the Compact’s fiscal agent and to explore
available alternative opportunities.

Compact staff requested direction on how to respond to the most recent email request from J. Killion. The
Board agreed and'instructed A. Brandt to respond to Killion’s email request for information and provide the link
to LED Streetlight Retrofit Program information posted on the Cape Light Compact website and a link to the
Governing Board Meeting Minutes for voting records and inform them to make future requests for information
directly to the Cape Light Compact Govermning Board for decisions and to take no further action.

There was discussion to curtail AOD meeting attendance and inquiry response.

LETTER TO HARWICH BOARD OF SELECTMEN
The Board then reviewed the 11/16/15 letter from the Harwich Board of Selectmen relative to the amendments

to the Cape Light Compact’s Intergovernmental Agreement. M. Downey reviewed a draft response to Harwich
_— e e e e

CAPE LIGHT COMPACT GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINTUES
JANUARY 27, 2016 OPEN SESSION MEETING MINUTES

:l



Draft Minutes subject to addition, correction and Board approval

Selectmen. B. Worth expressed support of the draft letter. V. Bell said she will be sure to get Selectmen’s
approval on any major issue. R. Schofield then moved the Board vote to approve the submission of the letter to
the Chairman of the Harwich Board, seconded by P. Pimentel and voted by roll call as follows:

1. D. Anthony, Barnstable Yes 8. R. Toole, Oak Bluffs Yes
2. R. Schofield, Bourne Yes 9. T Donegan, Provincetown Abs
3. P. Cocolis, Chatham Yes 10. J. Peters, Sandwich Yes
4. F. Fenlon, Eastham Yes 11. J. Buteau, Truro Yes
5. P. Pimentel, Edgartown Yes 12, R. Eikin, Wellfleet Yes
6. R. Zweig, Falmouth Yes 13. 8. Hruby, W. Tisbury Yes
8. B. Worth, Harwich Yes 14. J. Flynn, Yarmouth Yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (13-0-1).

BOARD MEMBER ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
M. Downey reviewed the Members Roles & Responsibilities. P. Cocolis asked if the work the Board performs
on the budget is included in member Roles & Responsibilities. D. Elkin said each member should clarify their
extent of authority with their Board of Selectmen. There was discussion about listed responsibilities, M
Downey noted that this topic will be continued at the February Board meeting,
At 4:00 pm Atty. Bernstein disconnected from the phone.

*kk At 4:00 pm the Board entered into Executive Session™**
STRATEGY DISCUSSION ON CONTESTED LEGAL ISSUES ON 2016 -2018 ENERGY EFFICIENCY PLAN, DPU 15-166
V. Chr. Schofield requested an Executive Session for the purpose of discussing contested legal issues on the
2016-2018 Energy Efficiency Plan DPU 15-166 pursuant to G.L. c. 30A §21(a)(3). He declared in open session
that an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining or litigating position of the Cape Light
Compact. He said the Board will reconvene in Open Session at the conclusion of the Executive Session. R. Zweig

moved the Board vote to enter into Executive Session, seconded by S. Hruby and voted by roll call vote as
SJollows:

1. D. Anthony, Barnstable Yes 8. R. Toole, Oak Bluffs not present
2. R. Schofield, Bourne Yes 9. T Donegan, Provincetown Yes
3. P. Cocolis, Chatham Yes 10. J. Peters, Sandwich Yes
4. F. Fenlon, Eastham Yes 11. J Buteaun, Truro Yes
5. P. Pimentel, Edgartown Yes 12, R. Elkin, Welifleet Yes
6. R. Zweig, Falmouth Yes 13. 8. Hruby, W. Tisbury Yes
7. B. Worth, Harwich Yes 14. J. Flynn, Yarmouth Yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (13-0-0 with one member not present to vote). Counsel and Staff were
permitted to remain.
***¥ At 4:24 p.m. the Board returned to Open Session***
POWER SUPPLY MARKETING PLAN UPDATE
The Board then reviewed the Power Supply Marketing Plan Campaign and budget provided by A. Brandt.
Power Supply Planner. He reported ConEdison Solutions offer to match Cape Light Compact’s contribution to
Marketing up to $40,000 to promote the Compact’s power supply program,

There was discussion about possibly crediting some portion of a customer’s early termination fees imposed by
competitors to incent customers to return to Cape Light Compact’s program making it clear this would be a one-
time offer.

CAPE LIGHT COMPACT GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINTUES
JANUARY 27, 2016 OPEN SESSION MEETING MINUTES



Draft Minutes subject to addition, correction and Board approval

A. Brandt said historically electric rates are lower for the 2™ half of the year but pricing is not available until
May/June.

He said there are three options available to credit termination fees:
1) Issue a check to the customer or credit the bill;
2) Obtain a signed contract committing participation until 2017 and impose an early cancellation fee or
3) Withhold termination fee reimbursement until after 2016 term to verify the customer participated
through December, 2016.

He reported Eversource has procured 50% of their load at about the same price as Cape Light.Compact. It is
unknown what their remaining 50% load costs will be.

There was discussion about referring customers who were scammed (switched by competitors without the
customer’s permission) to Attorney General and the Department of Public Utilities.

V. Bell and J. Peters expressed their opposition to offering the incentive to pay termination fees because those
who switched away from Cape Light Compact’s Program were aware of the competitor’s terms and conditions.

S. Hruby stated that she prefers to emphasize the idea of no penalty when participating in our Power Supply
Program adding it is our commitment to get the best deal for the consumer. Chr. Flynn also was not in support
of paying cancelation fees imposed by other competitors. D. Anthony said not knowing the return on the
investment, it is difficult and he suggested tracking the efforts to determine what works.

M. Downey noted that the existing power supply contracts have provisions for joint marketing efforts. She said
the Compact has a marketing consulting on contract and L. Henderson will work with radio stations.

OVERVIEW OF MASSACHUSETTS OPEN MEETING LAW - Tabled to next meeting.

Members from Martha's Vineyard left the meeting to catch the 6:15 pm return ferry to the Island. Without a
quorum, the meeting adjourned at 4:58 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Karen E. Loura
Administrative Assistant

L1ST OF DOCUMENTS & EXHIBITS
¢ Meeting Notice/Agenda
12/9/15 Open Session Meeting Minutes — Draft
Contract Tracking Summary (November 13, 2015 through January 27, 2016)
January-November, 2015 Energy Efficiency Budget Report
FY'16 Operating Budget Expenditures Report as of 1/27/16
January 6, 2016 AOD Telecommunications & Energy Committee Meeting Agenda
11/16/15 letter from the Harwich Board of Selectmen
Draft response to Harwich Board of Selectmen

CAPE LIGHT COMPACT GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINTUES
JANUARY 27, 2016 OPEN SESSION MEETING MINUTES



Draft Minutes subject to addition, correction and Board approval

Cape Light Compact Roles & Responsibilities dated January 27, 2016

Power Supply Marketing Plan Campaign

Attorney General Maura Healey’s Open Meeting Law Guide dated March 18, 2015

MGL Ch. 30A §§ 18-25 Open Meeting Law as of July 1, 2015

Letter of Resignation from Barry Worth, Harwich Cape Light Compact Board Representative
Copy of the Letter of Appointment of Valerie Bell as Harwich designee to the Cape Light Compact
Governing Board from Harwich Board of Selectmen

» Cape Light Compact Staff Organizational Flow Chart

CAPE LIGHT COMPACT GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINTUES
JANUARY 27, 2016 OPEN SESSION MEETING MINUTES



Municipals and Non-Profits 02.10.16




O Natural gas only measures — referred to National Grid

O Natural gas and electric measures — CLC pays according
to benefits

O For example, an EMS system costing $100,000 that is
calculated to have 60% electric benefits and 40% gas
benefits, would receive an incentive of $60,000 from Cape
Light Compact




CLC received approval for cost-effective
deliverable fuels measures/projects within the
Three Year Plan approval

If town is a
Green

Community,
utilize GC
funds first

Use CLC
Incentives
where there
IS NO
funding



O All projects must be cost-effective

O All associated equipment must be in functional
order

O Review of up to 100% incentive

O Commitment to savings over claimed lifetime

O Project level review with individual measures with some
savings

O Strategic approach with Peregrine and RISE

EQUIPMENT
REPLACEMENT 4

A customized
PM Program
pays for itself

PM
PROGRAM _

The Best Way to Deal with a Problem is to Prevent it



o O

@)

501(c)3 status

5 years or more of operations on Cape Cod and/or Martha'’s Vineyard and own building

Unrestricted annual operating revenue of less then $15M annually for service to low-
income (up to 60% of state median income) populations, OR

Unrestricted annual operating revenue of less than $2M annually for:
O Social services

O Cultural programs

O Economic Development

First come, first serve, 100 non-profits

Only applicable to small retrofit (hot new construction or gutting of facility), which is up to
100,000 kWh per year.






Jujpuad a10z/s/T A 5321435 AJejrauy '3 BT/TE/2T-9T/ST/T xeew duud dnougy Adsau] aundalad
Fuipuad 9102/5/7 A SIIINIIG SSILSNG (e BULE/LT-9T/1/T 0000694125 Junaauduz asyy
duipuad 910Z/5/2 d4Y SpIMAEIS {1a¥png 00'VZZ'T6ES 01
910z) weidold uonannsuo)
MAN [ENUIPISAY JUAPUILLY PUT
Sujpuad 9102/5/7 ) 193png spnpoid LYTEfzTfoTIfT 06'E0E'SPT UilIEW PaayPoT
3 Sunydy 9107 Jwawpuawe 157
dujpuad 9102/5/T A 1uaw|y(ny 3nZo|ele]) LE/TEfZT-ST/T/T x(iew Fupyud efu 143
Sujpuad 910Z/5/2 A J31u33 fjea 1§ Fuissadoid ajegay 8L/IEfCT-9T/T/T xnew Fupud 133
guipuad 910Z/5/2 A [ERITYES BY/TE/ZT-9T/51/T xiew Fupud 3InNsiu| Juawadevey puewag
Asefave 1210 g Junazmdug 1'9)
pasosddy ssauojssiwwo) paus0 N/A paindotd asoding w3l Penuol jo Junowy juawpuawy JLUEN JOPUIA
(a)/parosdid(v} )—U>_u._uﬂﬂEDU .—Q unowy
510300 'd a1/01/Z - 91/R2/1
dunpela) pesuo)

Ppedwo) 14217 ade)




MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES GRID MODERNIZATION

PLAN PROCEEDINGS
AND

CAPE LIGHT COMPACT PARTICIPATION

STEPHAN WOLLENBURG
FEBRUARY 10, 2016

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

Starting in 2012, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts began the process of directly addressing how the
state would modernize its electrical grid after a century of relative technological stagnation through a
series of Department of Public Utilities (DPU or Department) orders. The Department stated that “the
Department launches a new energy future for Massachusetts. The modern electric system we envision

will be cleaner, more efficient and reliable, and will empower customers

to manage and reduce their energy costs.”! Order, D.P.U. 12-76-B at 1
(June 12, 2014). Given the extent, cost, and longevity of the proposed
investments, decisions made as a part of this process will have
significant economic, environmental, and equity impacts that are likely
to persist for decades. Furthermore, potential changes in how electric
distribution companies (EDCs) are regulated and incentivized and
further changes in power supply, energy efficiency, and related services
will have comparably enduring effects.

D.P.U. 12-76-B required the EDCs to file grid modernization plans

(GMPs) proposing how that EDC intends to make “measurable progress”

towards the Department’s grid modernization cbjectives. This
document is intended to address the EDCs’ GMPs filed with the DPU,
with a focus on issues most likely to be of particular importance to the
Cape Light Compact {Compact) and the residents and businesses on
Cape Cod and Martha’s Vineyard. As an organization with interests and
responsibilities pertaining to power supply, energy efficiency, and
electricity delivery in general, the implementation of GMPs will have an
enormous impact on the Compact’s future work. Specifically, this

! That order also stated, “the modern electric system will build on the Patrick
Administration’s progress towards our clean energy goals by maximizing the
integration of solar, wind and other local and renewable sources of power.
Because customers will have new tools and information to enable them to use
less electricity when prices spike, the electric system will be appropriately
sized and less expensive.” D.P.U. 12-76-B Qrder at 1 {emphasis added).

GRID MODERNIZATION

Frequently
used acronyms

* AMF - advanced metering

functionality

e AMI - advanced metering

infrastructure
DG —distributed generation

DPU — Department of Public
Utilities

EDC — Electric distribution
company

EE - energy efficiency

GMP — grid modernization
plan

PV - photovoltaic

STIP — short-term
investment plan

TVR — time-varying rate



document provides an overview of the DPU-stipulated GMP requirements, a summary of Eversource’s
GMP, and possible areas of focus by the Compact in the proceedings. It also raises specific questions
that the Compact is most interested in receiving feedback on from its constituents. While this
document focuses on the DPU’s grid modernization proceedings that are currently underway, the
Compact and its partners on the Cape and Vineyard may pursue issues raised as a part of this process
through other venues, which might include legislation or other policy initiatives.

Questions prompted by the GMPs filed by the three EDCs and the grid modernization process in general
are ripe for discussion amongst residents and businesses on the Cape and Vineyard. While consensus is
unlikely, such discussions will help inform the Compact’s positions and potential participation in the grid
modernization proceedings. The grid modernization process in the Commonwealth is likely to be an
extended one, and positions of the parties, including the Compact, are likely to evolve over time as new
information is presented. As such, this document and the ensuing discussions should be considered part
of an ongoing dialogue, not a static one.

In addition to deciding upon which grid modernization issues it will focus, the Compact must consider
how it will participate in the EDCs’ proceedings. The EDCs’ GMPs have been docketed, but the
Department has not yet issued an Order of Notice and Notice of Filing, Public Hearing and Procedural
Conference, which will set forth a deadline for filing to intervene. These dockets are full adjudicatory
proceedings, meaning that the parties granted intervenor status may conduct discovery, sponsor
testimony, participate in hearings (including witness cross examination), and file briefs. The Compact
will need to decide in which EDC dockets it wili seek to intervene and how best to participate in the
proceeding(s} to accomplish its objectives, especially in light of the novel and precedent-setting issues at
stake.

PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND AND REQUIREMENTS

On October 2, 2012, in D.P.U. 12-76-A, the DPU opened on its own motion an Investigation into the
Modernization of the Electric Grid (D.P.U. 12-76-A Order). This order was followed by a number of
different regulatory proceedings and directives, including:

s An extensive working group process to gather stakeholder feedback on grid modernization

e D.P.U.12-76-B Order requiring each distribution company to develop a GMP

e An order laying out the specific business case filing requirements to be included in the GMPs
(D.P.U. 12-76-C)

e Aninvestigation laying out the Department’s framework for time-varying rates (TVR) (D.P.U. 14-
04-C Order}

¢ An investigation of electric vehicles and electric vehicle charging (D.P.U. 13-182)

On August 19, 2015, Eversource, National Grid, and Unitil filed their GMPs, docketed as 15-122, 15-120,
and 15-121 respectively.

GMP OBJECTIVES

GRID MODERNIZATION Page | 2



Inits D.P.U. 12-76-B order, the DPU outlined four objectives of grid modernization, all of which must be
addressed in the filed GMPs. Specifically, the four goals were:

1. Reducing the effects of outoges — namely by achieving the Department’s service quality goals
(D.P.U. 12-120), reducing the number and duration of outages, and generally increasing the
resilience of the distribution system.

2. Optimizing demand, including reducing system and customer costs — the DPU called for a
modernized grid that will reduce the system-wide peak, and use price signals and technology to
allow customers to shift their consumption to less expensive periods.

3. Integrating distributed resources - this goal, which contemplates resources including electric
vehicles, renewables, microgrids, and storage, is intended to help increase the resilience of the
system and help the Commonwealth achieve its climate goals.

4. Improving workforce and osset management — the DPU acknowledged that progress towards
this goal, which would increase operational efficiency and, presumably, reduce costs, would
likely be a byproduct of working towards the first three.

In addition to the Department’s four stated objectives, it specifically cited advanced metering
functionality (AMF) as a critical component of all grid modernization efforts. In fact, the Department
made it a requirement that the utilities achieve AMF functionality within five years of the approval of
their respective GMPs. Any EDC that proposed a longer timeframe was required to provide a business
case that demonstrated that the longer timeframe was a superior approach. The Department referred
to AMF, as opposed to advanced metering infrastructure (AMI), as it wanted to emphasize the
importance of achieving specific functionalities, instead of specifying a technology, such as AMI.2
D.P.U. 12-76-B Order at 14. In other words, the DPU chose to adopt a technology-neutral approach,
leaving it to the utilities to determine the most cost-effective way to implement AMF. in D.P.U. 12-76-
B, AMF is defined as including four elements:

1. The collection of customers’ interval usage data, in near real time, usable for settlement in the
ISO New England (ISO-NE) energy and ancillary services markets; ?

2. Automated outage and restoration notification;

3. Two-way communication between customers and the electric distribution company; and

2 AMI is defined by the Department of Energy as “an integrated system of smart meters, communications
networks, and data management systems that enables two-way communication between utilities and customers.”
(https:/fwww.smartgrid.gov/recovery_act/deployment_status/sdgp_ami_systems.html) While AMI satisfies all of
the DPU's requirements for AMF, the distinction between the two was intended to encourage the EDCs to pursue
other technologies that might achieve the same functions. As an example, this might have included using a
customer’s internet connection for communications, instead of relying upon a new, dedicated communications
infrastructure installed by the utility.

* 1SO-New England is the independent, not-for-profit organization that is responsible for planning and operating
New England’s electric transmission system and wholesale electricity markets. In this context, “settlement” refers
to the ability of a customer to be billed based on their actual, real-time electricity consumption, as opposed to
being billed based on an approximation of when their consumption occurred over the course of a given month.,

GRID MODERNIZATION ! 3



4, With a customer’s permission, communication with and control of household appliances
GMP-REQUIRED ELEMENTS

GMPs, as defined by the DPU, are ten-year strategic planning documents, outlining how the EDC will
meet the four objectives and achieve AMF. EDCs, in their GMPs, were required to include a number of
elements:

e A five-year short-term investment plan (STIP). The STIP covers all capital investments in the first
five years of the company’s plan, including a comprehensive business case which must address
scope, schedule, unquantifiable and quantifiable costs and benefits, progress towards achieving
other legislative and regulatory goals, etc.

e A marketing, education, and outreach {MEO) plan

e Aresearch, development, and deployment (RD&D)} plan

e Proposed infrastructure metrics (did the EDC install what it said it would?) and performance
metrics (has progress towards objectives such as improved service quality and distributed
generation interconnection been made?)

s Proposed procedures that would allow competitive suppliers access to certain customer usage
data without compromising customer confidentiality (D.P.U. 12-76-B at 34-36)

In the Department’s TVR investigation {D.P.U. 14-04), an interim order (D.P.U. 14-04-B} included a
framework for the implementation of TVR which the Department later adopted without any
modifications in its D.P.U. 14-04-C Order. This framework required that the EDCs offer two basic service
options — one (the default option) with off-peak, on-peak, and critical peak pricing (CPP) periods, and
the other a flat rate with the ability of customers to earn a peak time rebate (PTR) by reducing
consumption during high demand periods. The framework also addressed issues relating to consumer
education® and access of competitive suppliers to data for the purpose of developing and offering their
own TVRs. EDCs are required to develop GMPs/STIPs that are consistent with the Department’s
framework.

PRE-AUTHORIZED SPENDING, TARGETED COST RECOVERY

The Department allowed preferential treatment for certain spending as an incentive for the EDCs to
develop and implement their GMPs. D.P.U. 12-76-B Order at 3-S. Specifically, approved STIP capital
investments are eligible for pre-authorization, meaning the Department will not revisit whether the
investments should have been undertaken, though it may review the prudency of the implementation of
those investments. Furthermore, certain investments are eligible for targeted cost-recovery through a
capital expenditure tracking mechanism (capex tracker), which allows EDCs to expedite the recovery of
these investments. Only incremental capital investments that are made within the five-year STIP are
eligible. Furthermore, investments may only be claimed through the capex tracker if the EDC's STIP

¢ The Department stated, “Because customer education, marketing, and outreach are crucial to enabling the
successful implementation of grid modernization, companies’ marketing and outreach should begin early in the
grid modernization process.” (D.F.U. 12-76-B Order at 2)

GRID MODERNIZATION Pag 4



addresses AMF.®

EVERSOURCE GRID MOD PLAN

Eversource takes a very conservative approach to grid modernization, emphasizing incremental
investments. Eversource’s GMP also focuses on grid-facing investments, consistently downplaying the
potential benefits of giving consumers greater access to information and pricing transparency.
Eversource references studies that seem to indicate a lack of interest and ability for consumers to
meaningfully engage with a more interactive grid. Eversource’s conservative approach is also
highlighted by its resistance to rolling out AMF on an opt-out basis. Eversource concludes that AMI is the
most cost-effective way to achieve AMF as does National Grid, but Eversource fears that opt-out AMF
will not produce net benefits. Significantly, Eversource claims that it will be able to achieve 80% of the
benefits of TVR at 15% of the cost by using an opt-in approach instead of an opt-out one (Eversource
GMP, Exh. Eversource-PMC-1 at 16}, although it presents almost no details regarding the supporting
analysis. As discussed below, Eversource does not address other potential non-TVR related benefits of
AMI that National Grid includes in its business case. Critically, unlike National Grid, Eversource assigns
all of its proposed cyber security costs to TVR, as it claims that its current cyber security practices are
already sufficient for all of the other grid mod investments (Eversource GMP at 212-13). This claim
seems suspect, especially since it conveniently bolsters Eversource’s position that TVR is not particularly
cost-effective.

Throughout, Eversource states that it has already been piloting most of the contemplated technologies,
referencing its involvement in Electric Power Research Institute studies, TVR/AMI pilots in NSTAR and
Connecticut Light & Power territory, Department of Energy funding for advanced distribution
automation (ADA), etc. Eversource also provides significantly more detail on its planned grid-facing
distribution upgrades than does National Grid. The diversity of Eversource’s territory (especially
Western Massachusetts Electric Company versus Boston Electric Company) makes it particularly
challenging to evaluate some of its proposed investments. As an example, it proposes upgrades that will
increase the reliability of its secandary network distribution systems, a type of highly-redundant electric
distribution design used primarily in urban areas. Eversource acknowledges that these systems are
already extremely reliable, but says that outages on these secondary network systems can be
catastrophic and difficult to remedy quickly (Eversource GMP at 36). It is challenging to compare this to
proposed investments that will reduce the impact of or prevent outages that occur more frequently but
affect a smaller number of customers and are easier to rectify.®

5 The Department’s language does not address whether the STIP must achieve universal AMF on an opt-out basis.
See D,P.U. 12-76-B Order at 13-15, 20. However, given the Department’s adopted TVR framework that requires
TVR be the default option for all basic service customers, one could reasonably assume its intent is that AMF be
universally implemented, not just universally available.

& In its filing, Eversource uses dollars per customer minute saved (CMS) as one of the metrics for comparing

reliability investments. Eversource GMP at 25. This metric compares the cost of an investment to the resulting
reduction in the total number of minutes affected customers go without electricity. Still, there are many other
metrics for evaluating service quality that may also be considered, such as those currently used to evaluate the

GRID MODERNIZATION Page | 5



As noted above, possibly the most egregious error in Eversource’s GMP is the inclusion of investments in
tree-trimming, double-pole removal, stray voltage testing, manhole inspections, and other similar core
utility duties, Eversource argues that because these measures increase resiliency and reliability, they will
achieve some of the DPU’s objectives, and a modern grid does little good if it is not functioning. Still,
these activities are clearly not appropriate for inclusion in the GMP and to be recovered through a capex
tracker.

Eversource’s GMP appears to fail to satisfy the Department’s GMP requirements in a number of ways.
Namely, Eversource’s GMP:

¢ Does not provide for 100% AMF — as discussed in footnote 2, it is not clear whether the DPU
requires universal AMF, or if an opt-in approach is acceptable. However, it would seem that the
Department’s presumption is that AMF will be universal, given the fact that the TVR framework
makes TVR a default option.

¢ Does not adopt the DPU’s TVR framework — Eversource did not make TVR a default option for all
consumers, and the design of its opt-in TVRs do not conform to the DPU's framework.

s Does not clearly address providing data to third party suppliers, or the ability of suppliers to
develop TVR products (D.P.U. 14-04-C Order).

e Requires consumers to pay additional costs in order to get real-time access data. Thus, itis
unclear if Eversource’s proposed opt-in AMF meets the Department’s definition of AMF.

s Appears to seek recovery of operations and maintenance costs through the capex tracker,
although the DPU specifies that only capital investments are eligible.

¢ Incorrectly proposes to recover some costs — tree trimming, double-pole removal, stray voltage
testing, manhole inspections, etc. - as incremental grid modernization investments, when they
are actually core utility functions.

¢ Does not mention energy efficiency or how its proposed GMP is consistent with the DPU policy
framework that stated it “will benefit all customers by reducing peak energy and capacity
market costs; increasing system efficiencies and support the distribution system by reducing
peak demand; and providing appropriate incentives for distributed resources such as
photovoltaic generation, electricity storage, and electric vehicles, as well as targeted energy
efficiency and demand response.” (D.P.U. 14-04-C Order at 3).’

DISCUSSION — POTENTIAL AREAS OF FOCUS FOR THE COMPACT

EDCs’ service quality (see D.P.U. 12-120 for additional detail). Further complicating the issue, different customers
place very different values on electric service quality and reliability.

? Eversource includes in its GMP the cost of a 57 million investment in a proposed New Bedford Energy Storage
project with little explanation of consistency with the framework or allocation of cost to which customers.
Eversource GMP at 56-59.

GRID MODERNIZATION Page 6



The Eversource GMP includes an enormous amount of information. The DPU’s review process will be
exhaustive, and will involve a number of other parties, including the Attorney General, environmental
advocates, renewable energy interests, low-income ratepayer advocates, and various trade groups.
Furthermore, National Grid and Unitil raise issues that, if supported by the DPU, could have significant
statewide impacts. This might make it critical for the Compact to participate in the dockets reviewing
National Grid’s and Unitil’s GMPs as well. As such, the Compact’s resources will be best and most
effectively spent by focusing on a discrete number of issues which the Compact has distinct insight into

Key intervention points

» GMP must include a process for
providing data to competitive suppliers
and other vendors

-

TVR should not include fees that will
deter customers from participating

TVR design should include pricing during
peak periods that increases over time,
allowing customers to adjust their
consumption behavior, or select
alternative supply options

Eversource must consider alternatives to
requiring that customers commit to a full
year of TVR

Eversource needs to justify allocating all
incremental cyber security costs to
TVR/AMI implementation

Encourage DPU to require EDCs to
estimate transmission and distribution
savings associated with demand
reductions from TVR, DG, and cther grid
mod investments

Ensure geographical equity in reliability
costs and benefits

Address National Grid’s proposal to
introduce fees for standalone DG

GRID MODERNIZATION-

or that are likely to have particular impacts on Cape and
Vineyard customers. This section serves two purposes:
first, it highlights some of the areas that the Compact
should address in possible participation in the grid
modernization proceedings and other initiatives. Second,
it highlights issues on which the Compact is still clarifying
its position. The Compact is particularly interested in
feedback on these questions.

EVERSOURCE AMI AND TVR PROPOSAL

Eversource’s AMI and TVR proposal diverges significantly
from the direction provided by the DPU and the ideal of
grid modernization in general. Not only does Eversource
propose an opt-in approach, its proposal includes
specifics that seem designed to discourage customer
participation in TVRs. For instance, Eversource’s proposal
would require those that opt-in to TVR to pay some sort
of fee, though details on the structure of these fees are
scant. Eversource’s TVR structure would also include
prohibitively high rates during peak periods, and would
require that customers that opt into TVRs to stay with
them for at least a year. Eversource claims that these
design elements stem from a desire to properly allocate
costs and benefits, but they may represent unnecessary
impediments that do not properly account for all of the
benefits of TVR participation. Taken together, they may
result in a sort of self-fulfilling prophecy — unattractive
TVRs that will experience low participation levels and be
rendered ineffective as a result. If Cape and Vineyard
ratepayers want to have the ability to take advantage of
TVRs at a reasonable cost, the Compact should plan to
question some of these obstructive TVR and AMI
elements, and push for changes that would be more likely
to result in successful TVRs with high levels of



participation and significant benefits.

Eversource’s failure to address how competitive suppliers and other vendors could access customer data
with customer permission is another area of great concern to the Compact. The DPU’s vision for TVRs
includes a vibrant competitive marketplace with a variety of TVRs designed to benefit different types of
customers. Eversource’s GMP, on the other hand, seems to envision customers only being able to
access AM! meters if they opt into one of Eversource’s TVR offerings. National Grid’s GMP not only
speaks to the process for sharing data with third parties, it also assumes customer participation in TVR's
offered by competitive suppliers (National Grid GMP, Attachment 14 at 4). If the Compact’s power
supply customers want to take advantage of TVR options in the future, it is critical that the Compact
secure changes to Eversource’s GMP that will allow customers to opt-into AMI and TVRs through
competitive suppliers.

The Compact also questions whether it was proper for Eversource to allocate all incremental cyber
security costs to its AMI/TVR initiative. This allocation seems indicative of Eversource’s tendency to
make AMI/TVR seem as unattractive as possible throughout its GMP. The Compact may consider asking
the DPU to evaluate whether or not the allocation of other costs was appropriate.

Question 1 - Should the Compact push for universal, opt-out AM! and TVR?

The Compact’s position on a more threshold-level issue is still evolving, however. While it may be
contrary to the DPU’s direction, the Compact is actively considering whether there is merit to
Eversource’s argument that an opt-in approach to TVR may be most cost effective. It is a complex issue.

In support of its proposed approach, Eversource suggests that most residential and small commercial
customers do not have enough discretionary load {electricity use that can be shifted from one time of
the day to another) to benefit from a TVR. In fact, Eversource claims that some groups, including low-
income and elderly households, may see their bills increase if they participate in TVRs. While studies
cited by the DPU contradict this, this concern is shared by the Low-Income Energy Affordability Network
(LEAN), an advocate for low-income customers. Eversource also references studies and its own
experience to support the idea that customers simply are not interested in participating in TVRs or in
electricity bills at all. There are also a number of AMI-related benefits included in National Grid’s STIP
that Eversource does not include. The costs of AM| meters in the GMP also vary substantially,
depending on where in Eversource’s territory they are being installed. The Compact plans to request
that Eversource share more information that will allow the Compact to better evaluate these concerns.

It's crucial to note that Eversource’s position on AM! and TVR is contradicted by National Grid, which
advocates for universal AMI and opt-out TVR, as directed by the DPU. Notably, of National Grid’s four
potential investment scenarios, only its AMI-focused scenario has a 15-year benefit-cost ratio above 1
(National Grid GMP at 11). Throughout its GMP, National Grid cites its success in its grid modernization
pilot in Worcester, which included both universal AMI and opt-out TVR. Furthermore, because Grid
favors universal AM, it has a more developed concept of how AMI customers will use AMI and benefit

GRID MODERNIZATION : 8



from TVRs, spending more time discussing interactions with EE programs, integrating appliances, and
other opportunities for customers to use and benefit from AMI and TVRs. This may explain, in part, the
divergent views National Grid and Eversource have on the costs and benefits of AMI and TVR.

The Compact does not yet take a position on the question of universal AMI and opt-out TVR, as it
requires additiona! information. It will be important for the Compact and its constituents to grapple
with whether universal AMI and opt-out TVRs should be a priority. On one hand, there may be merit to
Eversource’s claims that most customers would not make significant changes in response to universal
AMI and opt-out TVR and that implementation costs far outweigh potential benefits. On the other
hand, universal AMI and opt-out TVR will spur new technologies and services that will increase the
ability of customers to shift their consumption, bringing savings to individual customers and benefits to
the system as a whole. Additional information will help better evaluate these competing positions. In
the meantime, the Compact and its constituents should begin to consider their positions on universal
AMI and opt-out TVR.

MONETIZING TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION BENEFITS

One of the primary potential benefits from optimizing electricity demand through programs like TVR is a
reduction in the need for EDCs to build additional capacity into their distribution system. The idea is
simple — as TVRs encourage customers to shift electricity consumption to periods of lower demand, the
demand curve on the distribution system becomes smoother, which lower peaks. The result should be
reduced capital investments typically associated with increasing system peaks.? Eversource claims that
the geographic diversity and inherent unpredictability of its proposed opt-in approach will make it
impossible to defer distribution system upgrades based on TVR participation moderating system peaks.
National Grid, similarly, does not monetize deferred distribution system investments resulting from TVR.
Given that such investment deferrals could represent an enormous source of financial benefits which
could translate into lower distribution rates, the Compact should request that the EDCs revise their
proposals to increase the likelihood that TVR participation will lead to deferred capital investments and
to monetization of these benefits.

Question 2 — What level of electric reliability do Cape and Vineyard residents expect,

and how much are they willing to pay for that reliability?

GRID-FACING INVESTMENTS

The Compact will need to consider the importance of electric reliability to its Cape and Vineyard
customers in the context of the costs and benefits of reliability investments proposed by the EDCs in

& As an example, Rhode Island, where National Grid is the EDC, has adopted what it refers to as a System Reliability
Procurement Plan, which requires utilities to consider alternatives, such as efficiency or DG, to traditional system
upgrades. While these alternatives are not the same as TVRs, the concept is similar.
http://www.energy.ri.gov/reliabilit

GRID MODERNIZATION age | 8



their GMPs. Although the Compact’s focus is generally more on customer-facing GMP elements than
grid-facing investments, electric reliability is a major issue in the GMPs. At minimum, the Compact
should plan to verify that there is geographical equity with regard to the benefits and cost allocation
associated with reliability investments. Beyond that, the priority of this item for the Compact depends
in part on the value that the Cape and Vineyard, as a region, places on electric reliability. While there
will always be additional investments that can be made to further increase reliability, there are certainly
diminishing returns associated with such investments. The question then becomes one of priorities -
how much are customers willing to pay for marginal increases in reliability?

Question 3 — Should the Compact push for policies that will continue to support a robust expansion of
‘ributed generation in Massachusetts, or should it focus more on ensuring DG owners are making payments
for grid services?

DISTRIBUTED GENERATION

All three EDCs discussed a need to change current rate design in order to ensure success in achieving the
DPU's objective to increase the integration of distributed energy resources. These proposals are of
potentially grave concern to the Compact, given the DG installed in its territory in recent years.
Specifically, National Grid proposed the introduction of new fees to be assessed on distributed
generation (DG), such as solar PV, installed with no significant on-site load. Grid also proposed to
decrease volumetric fees (fees charged per kwh} and increase customer (monthly) charges for
residential customers, going as far as to suggest that fees based exclusively on demand (kW or kVA} and
customer charges would be fairest. Unitil proposed changes that would have even more detrimental
impacts on net-metered DG. While Eversource did not propose any similar changes in its GMP, it calls
the issue an important one that “needs to be resolved in order to facilitate increased installation of DER
under a fair rate structure.” (Eversource GMP at 14). In all cases, the EDCs claim that current rate
design, specifically that of net metering, allows DG owners to benefit from the grid without contributing
a fair amount to maintaining it.

The issue is a complex one. Certainly, all DG owners without storage backup benefit from access to the
grid to provide power when their generator is not producing power (e.g., the sun is not shining). To the
extent that such system owners have enough generation to effectively zero out their utility bill, they are
not making payments to EDCs to help maintain the grid. On the other end, DG proponents claim that
various benefits associated with DG actually make the installation of DG a net benefit to EDCs and their
customers. For example, DG produces power when demand is highest, assists in system reliability,
produces power closest to load (minimizing losses), reduces the need for capital investments in
distribution system, etc. Importantly, some of the proposed changes could also reduce the incentives
for customers to invest in energy efficiency {EE), which has myriad benefits, including reducing peak

GRID MODERNIZATION *age | 10



demand.? EE & DG also assist in job creation, retains energy dollars in the state, and helps the
Commonwealth to achieve legislative energy goals, including those set forth in the Global Warming
Solutions Act.!® Because of the complexity of the issue, it becomes a question of priorities — whether
DG should be seen as something with enough benefits that it is worth supporting, potentially beyond its
true value to the grid, or if equity should always be the overriding concern, even if that yields policies
detrimental to DG.

The question of how to compensate DG overlaps with many other issues addressed in the GMPs. Still,
the DPU did not specifically require that net metering and DG compensation be addressed in the GMPs.
This issue is also complex and controversial. For these reasons, the Compact and other parties may
request that this question be removed from the GMP dockets and addressed by the DPU in a separate
docket. This procedural approach would allow for more deliberate consideration of net metering and
DG compensation that would be consistent across the territories of the three EDCs.

CONCLUSION

The current grid modernization docket and ensuing implementation of a smarter grid will unfold over a
period of many years. However, the decisions made today will have impacts that will persist far into the
future. For that reason, it is crucial to consider and continue to discuss grid modernization and what it
will mean for the Cape and Vineyard today and in the future.

Please keep in mind that this document and the questions it raises are not intended to be
comprehensive. The Compact will raise additional questions and challenges in the event that it
intervenes, and other issues likely will be addressed by other participants in the proceeding. Instead,
this document is intended to spur discussion on some of the most challenging and far-reaching
questions prompted by Eversource’s GMP.

® In a separate but related docket that involved the expansion of the Mashpee Substation, the DPU order includes
the condition that "NSTAR is strongly encouraged, in the future, ta discuss with the CLC the potential for targeted
and/or incremental EE, well in advance of determining that a transmission or distribution project is needed in the
Company’s Cape Cod service territory. NSTAR will be required to provide evidence of long-range EE planning
efforts in all future zoning exemption and Section 72 applications filed with the DPU.” Order, D.P. U. 14-03 at 20
{April 13, 2015).

12 some advocates suggest that an approach sometimes referred to a “Value of Solar” tariff is an ideal way to
address these concerns. Value of solar tariffs are designed to evaluate the real benefits of solar, and compensate
solar owners on that basis, Such an approach is intended to be fairer for both solar owners and other utility
customers, basing compensation on value, not on something more arhitrary like retail electricity prices. To date,
Minnesota and Austin, Texas have adopted value of solar tariffs. A good summary of value of solar tariffs is
available here: http://www.nrel.gov/tech_deployment/state_local_governments/basics_value-of-
solar_tariffs.html

GRID MODERNIZATION 11



Cape Light Compact Governing Board
Roles and Responsibilities

Janunry-272046February 14, 2016

Consistent with a) the Cape Light Compact (“Compact™) Intergovernmental Agreement, as

amended from time to time (“IGA™), b) Bylaws adopted pursuant to the IGA and c) the

Compact’s Aggregation Plan, as amended from time to time and as approved by the

Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities {the “Aggregation Plan"), the Compact Govemning

Board is responsible for the general management and supervision of the affairs of the Compact

except with respect to those powers reserved to the member municipalities or counties of the

Compact by law or the IGA:

e Compact Governing Board members shall use their best efforts to:

o

=

Attend meetings of the Governing Board; including review of meeting materials
and participation at meetings;

Conduct all meetings consistent with, and otherwise act in accord with, the Open
Meeting Law (M.G.L. c. 30A, §§18-25), the Conflict of Interest Law (M.G.L. c.
268A) and other applicable provisions of the Massachusetis General Laws;
Within a reasonable time afier appointment, request input from appointing
authority rcgﬂrdln_u hcw Dﬁcn you should interact 'u.Jth the appulnhng authority

Liad e

o—Previdecoptesefthe-Compact's audited-financislsintements to-member

FaveiCauntys

o

mermbertann Cauntys

Provide sixty (60) daysreasenable advance notice [define?-minimum-of-and
discuss all proposed amendments to the Compact IGA ' with member
Town/County, as directed by the chief executive board of such Town/County,
before acting on amendments; and

Submit an gAnnua) rReport to Town for inclusion in the Town Annual Report,

i

1

Formatted: Font: {Default) Times New
Roman, 12 pt

]






